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ZTC Telecommunications Plc (ZTC Plc) is a public limited company whose
shares are traded on AIM. The Group formerly designed, assembled and
marketed mobile phone handsets under the “ZTC” brand name in China.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholder,

On 13 October 2008 we informed shareholders that trading and credit conditions for small and medium-sized entities
(SME's) in the Peopls's Republic of China (PRC) had become increasingly difficult throughout the third quarter of 2008. This
was due to deteriorating macro economic conditions outside the PRC, slowing economic growth and restrictive credit
policies in China. As a consequence, our markets becams increasingly competitive, disrupted and oversupplied.

Following this announcement, and as notified on 10 November 2008, the Directors became aware that Chartes Huang,
CEO, majority shareholder and a major creditor of the Company's subsidiary Zhong Tian and Yang Rugiang, the General
Manager of the Group's China Operating subsidiary, Shenzhen Zhongtian Communication Equipments Co Lid (“Zhong
Tian"), and Charles Huang's brother in law, had been absent from the Group's offices and factory in Longgang, Shenzhen,
(China) and had been uncontactabla since 5 November 2008.

The unexplained absence of key personnel in the highly charged economic environment of southern China, destabilised
the Group's employees and creditors and, your Board beliaves, resulted in the unauthorised removal of some of Zhong
Tian's assets from its factory site in Longgang, Shenzhen {China). The local authorities subseguently moved to take control
of the situation and the People's Court of the Longgang district of Shenzhen (the “People's Count”) sealed the factory and
its buildings, sequestering all of the assets. Up to the date of this report, none of the Directors or employees of the Group
have been able 1o gain access to the factory and its buildings which remain sealed.

As a result of the management control issues arising and in order to ensure that an orderly markat in the Company’'s shares
was maintained, the Directors requested a suspension of trading in the Existing Ordinary Shares on AIM, and such
suspension was granted by the London Stock Exchangs on 7 November 2008.

Further investigations by the Directors revealed that on, 14 Novernber 2008, the local government paid compensation to,
and dismissed, a majority of the employeas of Zhong Tian. It is believed that the People’s Court subsequently auctioned
the Group's remaining inventory and equipment for RMB 1,220,765 (approximately £80,000) and this sum was, the
Directors believe, credited against the Government payments to employees {although this has not been capable of
verification by the Directors).

The Directors of Praise Ease ("PE"), the Company's wholly-owned Hong Kong holding company and the sole shareholder
of Zhong Tian, appointed China legal counsel cn 12 November 2008 and instructed them o conduct legal due diligence,
interacting with the local relevant authorities and other stakeholders including employees, debtors and creditors, and to
provide an opinion as to the prospects of any economic recovery. Following the official authorisations and requisite
payments, China tegal counsel commenced its investigations on 25 November 2008,

China legal counsel found that as of 19 December 2008, 29 creditor claims had been lodged against Zhong Tian, totalling
approximately RMB21m (approximately £2.2m).

Al the end of November 2008, it transpired that Tomorrow's Focus Limited (Tomorrow's Focus”), the company which then
held 68,000,000 Ordinary Shares beneficially owned by Charles Huang, had, withaut the knowtedge of the Company or
the Directors and in contravention of the AIM Rules, entered into loan agresments with Maiden Underiaking Limited
{"Maiden Undertaking”), a company bensficially owned by Mr Tong. Documentation produced to the Company showed that
Maiden Undertaking had lent an aggregate amount of HK$27,390,000 {approximately £2,000,000) to Tomorrow's Focus,
and that the repayment of the lcans was secured against the Ordinary Shares held by Tomorrow's Focus (representing
approximately 62.57% of the total issued share capital) and by personal guaranises given by Charles Huang in favour of
Maiden Undertaking (the “Charges”).

It further transpired during the preparations for putting the Proposals to Shareholders that Charles Huang on 14 April 2008
had transferred his holding of shares in Pan Europe Capital Limited, the legal entity which held 12,750,000 Existing Ordinary
Shares amounting at that time o approximately 11.7% of the then issued Existing Ordinary Share capital, to Ms.Cheung
Yiu Shan. The Company has been unable to contact Ms, Cheung Yiu Shan to establish the basis for the transfer of the
shares in Pan Europe Capital Limited to her and whether that shareholding is for the benefit of Ms. Chaung Yiu Shan or
another person, but, as yet, has had no response to its enquiries.
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To date, the factory and all buildings remain under seal and all assets sequestered by the People's Court. All key
management of the Subsidiariss have continued to take unexplained leave and all remaining employees have been
dismissed. The whereabouts of Charles Huang and Mr Yang Rugiang remain unknown.

While the Company’s investigations continue, it is the Beard's unanimous view that Zhong Tian is unikely to be able to
continue as a going concern. Following the alleged looting at the factory and the auction conducted by the Psople's Court,
the quantity of remaining equipment and inventory is unknown and its value is likely to be negligidle.

Further legal opinion indicates that, in order for the Company to gain access to the assets of Zhong Tian, it would have to
replace Charles Huang as legal representative of Zhong Tian, a lengthy and expensive procadure, and then commence ong
of the following processes:

) The settlement of existing claims and/cr appointment of a liquidation team (any voluntary liquidation process could
take up to two years and would incur considerable expense including the payment of uncalled capital, being
approximately RMB 170m (£12.4m); or

i) Aninvoluntary winding up process initiated by the local relevant authority of Shenzhen, which the Directors believe,
could also ba very time consuming and the likely focus on tangible assets would mean that any procesds are likely
to be minimal.

After due investigations, taking into account the limited resources of the Company, the Directors have concluded that the
Company's business in China will be unable to resume trading and, as such, the ability to realise any net assets for the
benefit of Shareholders will be extremely difficult and not cost-effective. Given the potentially long recovery procedures and
the Company’s limited rescurces, the Directors have concluded that the Subsidiaries of the Company have negligible or no
recoverable value. In addition, the disposal of Praise Ease is also a condition precedent of the party wishing to assist in the
refinancing of the Company.

Following discussions between the Company and Maiden Undertaking, and on the basis that there had been a breach of
the terms of the two loan agreements dated 16 May 2008 and 3 June 2008 by Tomorrow’s Focus and Charles Huang,
Maiden Undertaking is entitled, under the Charges, to retain the Charged Shares and register itself as owner of the Charged
Shares or sell or dispose the Charged Shares in its absolute discretion. It was subsequently agreed that Maiden
Undertaking would assert its rights under the Charges and assign the Charged Shares to Staybest Limited (“Staybest"), an
associated company, and, subject to the passing of the resolutions at the forthcoming General Meeting {the “Proposals”)
(details of which are set out in the Circular to shareholders dated 27 March 2009 (“the Circular")), that Staybest and
Wallhigh Limited ("Weallhigh") {a company intreduced to ZTC plc by the principals of Maiden Undertaking) would support
the Company by making the Investment to allow it to continue to operate and in due course, seek to acquire new
businesses.

On the basis that the Board has no reascn to believe that the Charges are net enforceable and against appropriate
indemnities received from Staybest, the Directors, pursuant to the Investrent Agreement, on 27 March 2009 agrsed tc
register Staybest ag the holder of the Charged Shares. As a result of the discussions with Maiden Undertaking and
conditional upon the passing of the Resoluticns and Admission, Staybest and Wellhigh have agreed to make the
Investrment which will provide the Company with sufficient working capital to operate for at least the next 12 months so
that, following the passing of the Resolutions, the Company will be able to instruct Fairfax to apply to the London Stock
Exchange for the suspension of dealings in the Company’s shares on AIM to be lifted.

The Directors believe that Charles Huang’s personal guarantee and the indebtedness of his company to Maiden
Undertaking may have been the reason for his sudden disappearance. As at the date of this repert, the Directors, having
made reascnable enquiries, are not aware of any other circumstances which may relate to his disappearance.

Proposed Disposal of PE

PE must be disposed of as a condition of the refinancing arrangements. PE is the intermediate holding company of Zhong
Tian, and since Zhong Tian is no longer considered a going congern, the directors have concluded to dispose of PE for a
nominal sum subject to sharehcider approval on 21 April 2009, on the terms that the Company will participate in any
economic recovery of PE.

The Directors believe, based on iegal advice, that ZTC plc is not liable for any of the liabilities within PE’s subsidiary, Zhong
Tian.
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Operating Results - 2008

Turnover in the year ended 30 June 2008 showed an increase of £4,375,000 over the previous year {an increase of 19.7%,
while gross margins remained steady at 20.8% (2007 21.5%). Whilst business was generally buoyant in the first half trading
conditions in the second half were difficult dug to the Sichuan earthquake, severe winter conditions and floeding in southern
China. Competition increased significantly post the year end and, following the holding of the Olympic Games in Beijing in
August 2008, wholesals orders fell dramatically reflacting reduced consumer demand and economic activity.

In the event, whila the operating profit for the year ended 30 June 2008, net of finance income and costs, amounted 10
£2,415,000 (2007: £2,016,000), the final audited loss befors tax for the year of £16,581,000 reflects animpairment charge
in respect of asseis in the subsidiary of £18,996,000. Further details on this impairment charge are given on page 33.

Recent Board Changes

Dr Yi Xie, Non-executive director, resigned from the Board on 18 December 2008. Following Charles Huang's
disappearance in November 2008 and his failure to reappear, the Board resolved to remove him as a director of the
Company on 22 December 2008.

Basis of preparation of the 2008 Report and Financial Statements

Based on the best information available to the Directors, and taking into account the prospacts for the Company following
the implementation of the Proposals as set out in the Circular to shareholders, your Board has concluded that it is
appropriate to prepare the accounts for the parent company on a going concern basis. This basis Is considered appropriate
on the basis thal the company has securad new finance of £280,000 (which is subject to shareholder approval on 21 April
2009) which is an integral part of proposals to shareholders as set out in the Circular to shareholders. Clearly the ability of
the company with limited resources to continue to trade as a going concern after the fund raising will be dependent upon
the successfil execution of the changed investment sirategy which again is set out in the Circular to shareholders. Given
the difficulty of establishing the legal ownership of any remaining assets in China, and the likely costs of achieving any
recovery and of settling any liabilities of Zhong Tian, the Board dees not believe that Zhong Tian is a going concern, and
hence has prepared its accounts under a break up basis.

Due to the loss of all value of Zhong Tian, it is appropriate to write off the investment and inter-company debtors in the
accounts of the ultimate parent company ZiC plc.

Further details of the impact of these assumptions are set out in the Directors’ Report.

Outlook

Assuming the Proposals are implemented, the strategy of the Directors will be for the Company to invest in one or more
companies established in the Asia Pacific region, but which have a significant focus on the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC") {asseis, customers or suppliers) and have the need for capital prior to them achieving a fiotation on the public
markets, either within or outside the PRC, or achieving a trade sale in due course. Such companies will be sourced largely
through the contacts of the Directors, and any funding required by the Company to make such an investment will be raised
prior thereto. While the Company is net currently able to identify the specific types of businesses which it might invest in,
it is more likely than not that tha sectors which will be targeted will be resources, technology and property — all areas where
the Board has existing knowledge and contacts.,

The Board believes that the Directors hava relevant experience in identifying, assessing, and negotiating such acquisitions.
The Directors believe that their broad collective experience in acquisitions, accounting, corporate and financial
management togsether with their wide industry contacts will enable the Company 1o achieve its objectives.

Investment propositions will be considered when the Directors consider that enhanced values may be achieved. A
particular consideration will be to identify investments where the Directors believe that their expertise and experiance can
be deployed to facilitate growth or unlock value. There is no limit to the number of projects in which the Company may
invest,
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The Directors will conduct initial due diligence appraisals of potential projects and where they believe further investigation
is warranted they will appoint suitably qualified, and where appropriate independent persons to conduct further due
diligence.

The Gompany, as currently proposed, is unlikely to have sufficient cash resources to expend in undertaking due diligence
on any potential projects. In the event that a suitable proiect is identified, the Company would either seek to raise further
funds in order to finance any due diligence and acquisition costs or seek to pass on the costs to a third party, possibly in
return for a success-related fee payable in shares or in cash. Staybest and Welhigh have indicated that they would be
willing to participate in the funding of such costs.

The Directors intend to take an active role in assessing and management of any investment that the Compary may make.
Accordingly, the Company is likely to sesk participation in the board of directors of any company which the Company
acqguires with a view to improving its performance and using of its assets in such ways as should result in an increase in
the value of such a company, The Directors hope that the resulting benefit would provide a satisfactory return to the
Company’s Shareholders.

In the event no substantial acquisition is made within 12 menths of the date of the 2009 AGM, in accordance with the AlM
rules for Companies, trading in the Company’s shares will be suspended and if no reverse transaction is achieved in the

following 6 menths, the Londan Stock Exchange will cancel the admission of the shares.

If for any reason the Company’s shares are not re-admitted to trading on the Alternative Investrment Market on the Lonclon
Stock Exchange Hy 30 April 2009, the £280,000 new finance will become immediately repayable.

If the company fails 10 secure a new investment opportunity or additicnal new finance within the next 12 menths, the
company will be unable to continue as a going concern as it will have insufficient funds to trade.
Frank Lewis

Chairman

27 March 2009




Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report on the affairs of the Company and the Group, together with the audited financial
statements, for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Principal activities

On 21 March 2007, following the acquisition of the whole of the issued share capital of Praise Ease Limited ("Praise Ease”
or “PE", the Company was admitted to the Afternative Investment Market (“AIM”) of the London Stock Exchange. Praise
Ease is the holding company of Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments Co. Ltd ("Zhong Tian") which is
incorporated in China and which, during the year ended 30 June 2008, designed, assembled and marketed mobile phone
handsets under the ZTC brand name in China. Zhong Tian is located in the Longgang District of Shenzhen, China, and
was the principal operating company in the Group during the year.

Business review and future developments

Details of the Group’s business and expected future developments are also set out in the Chairman’s Staterment on pages
3 to 6 and the Circular to shareholders.

Cessation of trading of subsidiary

As noted in the Chairman's Statement, Mr Chaohui (aka Charles) Huang, CEO, major creditor and majerity sharsholder of
ZTC Plc and Mr Yang Rugiang, Zhong Tian's General Manager have been absent from the Zhong Tian and uncontactable
since 5 November 2008. As a result of the uncertainty that this caused and the interruption to the running of the business,
trading of shares in ZTC Pl¢ was suspended as of 7 Novernber 2008.

The main cormpany in the Group that has been affected by this is Zhong Tian, the trading company of the Group. Due to
the events noted in the Chairman’s statement, and the fact that Zhong Tian has not traded since 5 November 2008, the
Directors believe that the assets and liabilities of Zhong Tian should be valued on a break-up basis, that this is the only
appropriate basis for vaiuing the assets and liabilities of Zhong Tian, and that this basis should be appliec at the balance
sheet date,

As the Directors have no access to any of Zhong Tian's financial information, the Directors have made the following write-
downs, based on best estimates, of Zhong Tian’s assets in preparing the year end financial statements:

Going
concern Amounts  Written down
value at written off value at
30 June 2008 30 June 2008 30 June 2008
(EGBPF) (£GBP) (EGEP)
Property, Plant & Equipment 405,675 (405,647) 90,028
Inventories 1,255,021 (1,255,021) -
Trade receivables 12,016,928 (10,121,523 1,895,406
Prepayments 7,153,810 (6,160,508} 993,302
Other receivables 1,052,389 (1,052,389} -
Cash & cash equivalents 1,616,760 - 1,616,760
Total 23,590,584  (18,895,088) 4,595,498

The consolidated position of the Group reflects these adjustments, with a total of £23,590,584 of assets held within Zhong
Tian at 30 June 2008 baing written down to their recoverable value. The fiabilities of Zhang Tian have not been written
down since these liabilities have not been legally extinguished and therefore continue to be recognised at their year end
values. This is in accordance with IAS 39 paragraph 39.
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Although the values above represent the directors’ best estimate of recoverable amounts, the recoverability would have
occurred within Zhong Tian, and ZTC plc would have received no financial bensfit from their recovery.

As discussed in the Chairrnan’s statement, directors' report and Circular to shareholders, as part of the re-financing of the
Company, Zhong Tian and its immediate holding company, PE, are being disposed of for a nominal sum.

In the parent company, the investment and intercompany receivables have been written down to zero value 1o reflect the
non-recoverability of these assets. A total charge of £18,066,000 has been reflected in the accounts of the parent company
in respect of these write-downs.

Based on the best information available to the Directors, and taking into account the prospects for the Company following
the implementation of the Proposals, your Board has concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts for the parent
company on a going concem basis, subject to fundamental uncertainty and accordingly continue io present these
accounts on that basis. The board also believs that the accounts of the intermediate parent company, Praise Ease Limited
should be prepared on the going concern basis however, the Board does not believe the subsidiary Zhong Tian is & going
concern, and hence have prepared its accounts under a break up Dasis.

The Directors believe, based on legal advice, that ZTC Plc is not liable for any of the liabilities within Zhong Tian and also
believe that, subject to completion of the proposed transaction, details of which are set out in the Circular to shareholders
dated 27 March 20089, therg is sufficient funding available to the Company 1o enable it to continue to meet its own liabilities
{excluding that of other Group companies) for the foreseeable future. Clearly the future prospects of the company will be
wholly dependent on the ability of the Board and the new maijor investor, to successfully implement the Investment strategy
as outlined in the Chairman’s statement and the Circular to the sharsholders.

Results and dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 ars sst out on page 20.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

Directors
The present Directors of the Company, who served throughout the year, are as follows:

Frank Lewis
Mark Syropoulo
Michael Liu

On 18 December 2008, Dr Yi Xie tenderad his resignation from his position as a Non-Executive Director of ZTC Ple.

On 22 December 2008, the Board resolved 10 remove Charles Huang as a director of the Company with immediate effect.

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the present Directors and their families at 30 Jurne 2008 in the ordinary share capital of the
Company were as follows:

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
shares opilions shares options
F Lewis - 100,000 - 100,000
M Syropoulo 425,000 500,000 350,000 500,000
M Liu 3,400,000 500,000 2,800,000 500,000

The ordinary sharas beneficially owned by Mr Syropoulo and Mr Liut are registered in the name of Higher Performance Team
Limited.
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A full fist of share options cutstanding during the year is set out below:
Share options
At 1 July Exercised/ At 30 June Exercise Exercisable

2007 Granted Lapsed 2008 Price From To
F Lewis 100,000 - - 100,000 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
C Huang 500,000 - - 500,000™ 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
M Syropoulo 500,000 - - 500,000 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
M Liu 500,000 - - 500,000 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Dr Y Xig 103,000 - - 100,000 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Ru giang Yang 100,000 - - 100,000" 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Qing min Qu 80,000 - - 80,000* 20p 21,03.08 20.03.17
Jian yang Shu 100,000 - - 100,000* 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Jian Wang 20,000 - - 20,0007 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Fei zhou Yie 20,000 - - 20,0007 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Gue hong Li 30,000 - - 30,000 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Guang jun Zhu 20,000 - - 20,000~ 20p 21.03.08 20.0317
Xiut shan Guan 20,000 - - 20,000 20p 21,03.08 20.03.17
Guo ji Jiang 10,000 - - 10,000* 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Shuang giang Yuan 30,000 - - 30,000* 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17
Jian Guo 30,000 - - 30,000" 20p 21.03.08 20.03.17

The share opticns set out above were exercisable in three equal successive annual instalments cormmencing on and/or
after the first anniversary of the date of grant.

No performance conditions were imposed on any of the above share options and ne censideration was payable for their
award.

Since 30 June 2008, the share options above marked ** have been surrendered for nil consideration., Those marked **~
refate to the former Directors, Charles Huang and Dr Xie whose options, under the Rules of the Option Plan, lapse after
they cease to hold office with the Group. In case of Charles Huang, these options will therefore lapse on 21 July 2009 and
in case of Dr Xie, these have lapsed on 18 February 2009. Those marked * will lapse on 14 May 2009.

The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares at 30 June 2008 was 8.25p; the range during the year was 6p to 17p.

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions are given in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Financial Instruments and Treasury policy

During the year, the foliowing were the policies adopted by the Board. The Chairman’s statement provides an updated
assessment of the current position of the company.

Details of the use of financial instruments by the Company and its subsidiaries are contained in Note 19 of the financial
statements,

The Group's multi-national operations could expose it to certain financial risks.
The most significant financial risk occurs upon translation of the foreign operation’s results into sterling upon consolidation,

Almost 100% of foreign revenues and the bulk of operating costs are incurred in the local currency, the 8MB. Group
companies therefore do not engage in foreign exchange risk hedges.




Prudent liquidity risk management in the context of the Group implies maintaining sufficient cash balances or marketable
securitios in the necessary currencies to be able to pay creditors as and when they fall due. The bulk of the Group's
balances are held in RMB, sterling and HK doflars.

Funds surplus to monthly requirements are normally kept on interest bearing financial instruments. Cash balances are
deposited with banks carrying high credit ratings in their respective country jurisdictions.

Creditor payment policy
During the year, the following were the policies adopted by the Board. The Chairman’s statement provides an updated
assessment of the current position cf the company.

The Company’s policy is to agree payment terms with all suppliers when establishing the terms of each business
transaction and to abide by the agreed terms of payment. Trade oreditors of the Company at 30 June 2008 were equivalent
to 76 days purchasas based on the average daily amount invoiced by the suppliers during the year ended on that date.

Substantial shareholdings

At 23 March 2009 the Directors had been notified or wera otherwise aware of the following registered holdings of 3% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital:

Number of  Percentage of
ordinary  issued ordinary

shares share capital
Tomorrow’s Focus Limited 68,000,000 62.57%
Pan-Europe Capital Limited 12,750,000 11.73%
Albany Capital Limited 5,448,008 501%
Higher Performance Team Limited 4,250,000 3.91%

As noted above, during the year, Charles Huang was beneficially interested in the shares which were registered in the
names of Tomorrow’s Focus Limited and Pan-Europe Capital Limited.

Mr Syropoulo and Mr Liu are beneficially interested in 425,000 and 3,400,000 of the ordinary shares, respactively, which
are registered in the name of Higher Performance Team Limited.

Share capital

On 13 February 2007, Praise Ease Limited was acquired by ZTC pic for an initial consideration of 70 million ordinary shares
of 10p each (“Ordinary Shares"), issued at 20p per Ordinary Share.

The acquisition agreement provided for the issue of up to 15 million Ordinary Shares by way of deferred consideration to
the previous shareholders of Praise Ease Limited, subject to the main operating subsidiary, Shenzhen Zhong Tian
Communication Equipments Co Ltd (“Zhong Tian"} achieving a post tax profit in excess of RMB 35 million in the 12 month
period to 30 June 2007.

Zhong Tian achieved the agreed level of profitability for the year ended 30 June 2007, and accordingly an additional 15
million Ordinary Shares were issued to the vendors of Praise Ease Limited on 21 Dacember 2C07.

Further details of the changes in share capital during the year are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

10
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Employees
During the year, the following were the policies adcpted by the Board. The Chairman’s statement provides an updated
assessment of the current position of the company.

The commitment and ability of our employees are key factors in achieving the Group’s objectives. We seek to give eqgual
opportunities in employment and ensure that all employees receive fair treatment irrespective of sex, religion, ethnic origin
br disability including those who become disabled during their employment. The Group supports and aids employee
welfare as well as personal and career development.

Our communications aim is to increase the understanding of the business through regular employee briefings at all levels.

Charitable and political donations
The Company made no charitable or political donations in the financial year (2007; Nil).

international Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements have been preparad in accordance with applicable International Financial Reporting Standards as
endorsed by the European Union. The financial statements of the company’s own accounts have been prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

The events referred to in this Directors' Report and the Chairman's statement regarding the cessation of trading of Zhong
Tian are disclosed further in note 2 and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each Director at the date of approval of this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all steps that he cught to have taken t¢ make himself aware
of any relevant audit infoermation and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information,

Auditors

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP have expressed their wilingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution 1o reappoint
them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Recommendation

The Board considers that the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting are in the best interests of the
Company and it is their unanimous recommendation that shareholders support these proposals as the Board intends to
do so in respect of their own holdings.

By order of the Board

J P Gorman FCA
Cornpany Secret,

27 March 2009

11
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Corporate Governance Statement

During the year, the following were the policies adopted by the Board. The Chairman’s statement provides an updated
assessment of the current position of the company. '

The Directors recognise the value of the principles of good governance, as set out in the Combined Code and the
guidelines published by the Quoted Companies Alliance, and aim 1o comply with such corporate governance practice so
far as is practicable and appropriate for a public company of its size and nature quoted on AIM.

Frank Lewis, the Non-executive Chairman, is a member of the Audit Committee. While this does not meet the requirements
of the Combined Code on the basis that a company chairman is not regarded as independent, the Board considers that
he is an appropriate person to be a member of this committes, as he meets the Combined Code's requirement that one
committee member should have recent and relevant financial experience.

The Company has adopted a model code for Directors’ dealings in securities of the Company which is appropriate for a
Company guoted on AIM. The Directors will comply with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules relating to Directors’ dealings and will
take all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by the Company's “applicable employees” (as dafined in the AIM Rules),

Board of Directors

During the year, the Board compriged three Executive and two Non-executive Directors. The Non-executive Directors are
independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment.

Since the resignations of Charles Huang and Or Yi Xie in Decembier 2008, and to the date of those accounts, the Board
has comprised two Executive and one Non-executive Directars. Further appointments will be made to strengthen the
Board on completion of the proposed transaction set out in the Circular to shareholders dated 27 March 2009,

The Board meets on average at least every month and is respensible, inter alia, for setting and menitoring group strategy,
reviewing trading performance, ensuring adequate funding, examining development opportunities, formulating policy on
key issues and reporting to shareholders. Decisions concerning the direction and control of the business are made by a
majority of the Board and a forma schedule of matters specifically reserved for the decision of the Board is in place.

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Group's system of internal financial controls. Internal financial
control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the risks to which it is exposed, and by its
very nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matarial misstatement or loss.

An agreed procedura exists for Directors in the furtherance of their duties to take independent professional advice. Newly
appointed Directors are made aware of their responsibilities through the Company Secretary.

Board appointments

The appointment of Directors is overseen by the full Board. There is no formal nominations commitiee, the appointment of
naw Directors being considered by the full Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Frank Lewis and included Dr Yi Xie {resigned 18 December 2008). Meetings are
expected to be held on average twice a year.

The Committee provides a forum for reporting by the Group's external auditors. Itis also responsible for reviewing a number
of other matters, including half-year and annual results before their submission to the Board and for monitoring the controls
that are in force to ensure the integrity of information reported to shareholders. The Committes alse advises the Board on
the appointment of external auditors and on their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work, and will review the
nature, scope and results of the audit with the external auditers.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committes is chaired by Frank Lewis and included Dr Yi Xie (resigned 18 December 2008). Meetings
ara expecied to be held on average twice a year. The Committes is responsible for making recommendations 1o the Board,
within agreed terms of reference, on the Company's framework of executive remuneration and its cost. The Committee
determines the contract terms, remuneration and other benefits for the Executive Directors, including performance related
bonus schemes and compensation payments.

Tha Board determines compensation for Non-axecutive Directors.

Internal financial control and reporting

The Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining the Group's system of internal controls and as such have
put in place a framework of controls 10 ensure that the ongeing financial performance is measured in a timely and correct
manner and that risks are identified as eary as is practicably possible. During the year there was a comprehensive
budgeting system and monthly management accounts were prepared which compare actual results against both the
budget and tha previous year. They were reviewed and approved by the Board, and revised forecasts were prepared on a
regular basis.

Relations with shareholders

The Company reports to shareholders twice a year. The Company dispatches the notice of its Annual General Meeting,
together with a description of the items of special business, at least 21 clear days before the meeting. Each substantially
saparate issus is the subject of a separate resolution and all shareholders have the opportunity to put questions to the
Board at the Annual General Meeting. The chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration Commitiees normally attend the Annual
General Meeting and will answer questions which may be relevant to their work. The Chairman advises the meeting of the
details of proxy votes cast on each of the individual resolutions after they have been voted on in the meeting.

The Board intends to maintain a geod and continuing understanding of the objectives and views of the shareholders.
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

This report does not constitute a Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002 which do not apply to the Company as it is not fully listed.

The Company has applied the principles relating to Directors’ remuneration as described below.

Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised Frank Lewis as Chairman of the committee and Dr Yi Xie
{resigned 18 December 2008). The Remuneration Committee has formal terms of reference.

At tha invitation of the committee chairman, Executive Directors may attend the proceedings.

None of the committee members has any personal financial interests {other than as shareholders) or conflicts of interest
arising from cross-directorships. The committee has access to professional advice from inside and outside the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible, inter alia, for determining the remuneration of the Executive Directors, and
the grant of share cptions. No external remuneration advisers were appointad during the year.

Policy on Executive Directors' remuneration

Remuneration packages are designed to mctivate and retain Executive Directors to ensure the continued development of
the Company and to reward them for enhancing value to shareholders. The main elements of the remuneration package
for Executive Directors are basic salary or fees, benefits, and share option incentives,

Directors’ remuneration
The ramuneration of the Directors for the year ended 30 June 2008 is shown below:

2008 2007

£ £

Aggregate emoluments of Executive Directors 220,000 129,725
Pension contributions - -
Payments to Non-executive Directors 47,750 50,021
Total Directors’ remuneration 267,750 179,746
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The elements of remuneration received by each Director in respect of the year ended 30 June 2008 were as follows:

Performance
Fees and Other Related Total Total
salaries Benefits Pension Bonus 2008 2007
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive Directors

C Huang {i) 100,000 - - - 100,000 24,899
M Syropoulo (i) 60,000 - - - 60,000 15,000
M Liu {i} 60,000 - - - 60,000 15,000
E Vandyk (i) ~ - - - - 37,228
A Pereira (i) - - - - - 37,500

Non-executive Directors
F Lewis (i) 37,750 - - - 37.750 12,795
Or Yi Xie ) 10,000 - - - 10,000 2,500
Q Vaughan (i) - - - - - 34,726
- 267,750 179,746

267,750 - -

{i) Appointed 21 March 2007
(i) Resigned 21 March 2007

Share incentives

The ZTC Telecommunications Plc Unapproved Share Option Plan (the “Option Plan”} was established to incentivise and
remunerate key employess and senior management, including the Directors, as the Board of the Company considers
appropriate.

The exercise of a share opticn may be conditional upen the achievernent of cbjective performance criteria determined by
the Boarg of the Company.

The options granted to Directors and employees over the Company's ordinary shares of 10p and outstanding during the

year are set oul in the Director's Report.

Current terms of appointment
The terms of appointment currently in place for Directors are as follows:

Other

Salary Pension benefits

or fees  contribution p.a Notice
Directors per annum % £ Date of contract period
Executive
M Syropoulo 60,000 - - 13 February 2007 6 months
M Liu 60,000 - - 13 February 2007 6 months
Non-executive
F Lewis 30,000 - - 13 February 2007 3 months

Additional fees can be charged by the Non-executive Directors where this is pre-approved by the Board.

*Paymenis to the Executive Directors ceased with effect 1 September 2008,
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Outside appointments

Executive Directors whao are not full-time are permitted to accept appointments outside the Company and to refain
payments from those sources.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

A service agreement dated 13 February 2007 took effect on the date of the Company's admission to AlM on 21 March
2007 between (1) the Company and (2) Charles Huang pursuant to which Mr Huang was employed full-time as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The service agresment was terminable by either party on 12 months’ written notice and
Mr. Huang's salary was £100,000 per annum. Mr Huang was not entitled to any other benefits, save that he is eligible 10
acquire shares in the Company in accordance with the Option Plan and the Company would provide access t6 a
stakeholder pension scheme. This contract was terminated with effact 22 December 2008.

A service agreement dated 13 February 2007 took effect on the date of the Company's admission to AIM on 21 March
2007 between (1) the Company and (2} Mark Syropoulo pursuant to which Mr Syropoulo is employed part-time as the
Finance Director of the Company. The service agreement is terminable by either party on 6 months' writien notice and Mr
Syropoulo's salary is £60,000 per annum. Mr Syropoulo is not entitied 1o any other benefits, save that he is eligible to
acquire shares in the Company in accordance with the Cption Plan and the Company will provide access 1o a stakeholder
pension schems.

A senvice agreement dated 13 February 2007 ook effect on the date of the Company's admission to AlM on 21 March
2007 baetween (1) the Company and (2) Michael Liu pursuant to which Mr Liu is employed part-time as the International
Development Director of the Company. The service agreement is terminable by either party on 6 months' written notice
and Mr Liu's salary is £60,000 per annum. Mr Liu is not entitied to any other benefits, save that he is eligible to acquire
shares in the Company in accordance with the Option Plan and the Company will provide access to a stakeholder pension
scheme.

Both Mr Syropoulo and Mr Liu have agreed to remain as directors but in 2 non-executive capacity.

Directors’ pension arrangements
Under their service coniracts Mr Syropoulo and Mr Liu have access 1o a stakeholder pension scheme.

No contributions have been mads in respect of any such scheme in the year ended 30 June 2008 or 2007.

Non-executive Directors

The remuneration of Non-executive Directors is determined by the Board, and is based upon fegs paid to Non-executive
Directors of similar companies.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under lstters of appointment setting out specific periods of notice, and do not have
a contract of service. nor are they eligible for any pension arrangements.

Details of Directors’ remuneration

This report should be read in conjunction with note 11b to the financial statements which constitutes part of this report.
Details of Direclors’ interests in ordinary shares and share options ara set out in the Direciors’ Report.

By arder of the Bo:

Frank Lewis
Remuneration Committee Chairman

27 March 2009
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting recerds which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities and for the preparation of a Directors' Report which complies with
the requirements of the Companies Act 1985.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Companigs Act 1985, The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for the Group in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ((FRSs} and the rules of the London Stock
Exchange for companies trading securities on the Alternative Investment Market, and have chosen to prepare the parent
company accounts in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

Group Financial Statements

International Accourting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the Group's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects of
fransactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liahilities,
income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and
presentation of financial statements'. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with
all applicable IFRSs. A fair presentation also requires the Directors to:

. consistently select and apply appropriate accounting policies;

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information; and

[ orovide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient tc enable users
to understand tha impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and
financial performanca.

Parent Company Financial Statements

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

¢ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company
will continueg in business;

[ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financtal statements.

Website

Financial staternents are published on the Group's website in accordance with legislaticn in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statemeants, which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The
maintenance and integrity of the Group's website is the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors' responsibitity also
extends to the cngoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein,
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Report of the Independent Auditors

Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of ZTC Telecommunications Plc

We have audited the financial statements of ZTC Telecommunications Plc for the year ended 30 June 2008 which comprise
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated balance shest, the
company balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directers’ responsibilities for preparing the group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union, and for preparing the parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of directers’ respensibilities.

Cur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as ¢ whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1885 and whether the information given in the directors’ report is
consistent with those financial statements. We alsc report to you if, in our opinicn, the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the annual report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. The other information comprises only Directors and Advisors, the Chairman’s Statement, the Directors’ Report,
the Corporate Governance Statement, the Report of the Remuneration Committee and the Statement of Directors'
Responsibilities. We consider the implications for cur report if we become aware of any apparent misstatemants or material
inconsistancies with the financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Qur report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. No
person is entitled to rely on this report unless such a person is a persen entitled to rely upen this repert by virtue of and for
the purpose of the Companies Act 1985 or has been expressly authorised to do so by our pricr written censent. Save as
above, we do not accept responsibility for this report to any other person or for any other purpose and we hereby expressly
disclaim any and all such liability.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board, except that the scope of our work was limited as explained below.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgmenis made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planined our audit 50 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or errcr, however, the information available to us was limited.

As noted in further datail in the Chairman’s Statement and the notes to the financial staiements, the disappearance of
Charles Huang in early November and the subsequent serious disruptions to the trading operations in China, resulted in
the Group losing control of certain assats held in the trading subsidiary company Shenzehn Zhong Tian Communications
Equipments Co. Limited. After consideration, and taking legal advice on the options available to recover control of the
subsidiary company, the ultimate conclusion by the Directors was that in the circumstances they had no opticn but to
prepare the financial statements of this subsidiary company using the break-up basis of accounting. However, due to the
fact that the directors no longer had access to the assets or accounting records of this subsidiary, the evidence available
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to us in respect to the ownership and existence of these assets and the impairments made against them was limited. In
particular, we have been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence concerning the write down of assets with
an original going concern valug of £23,500,584 by £18,995,088 to £4,595,496 included within the consolidated balance
sheet and further detailed in note 3 to the financial statements.

Any adjustments to these figures would have a corresponding adjustment to the consolidated loss and consolidated net
assets for the year ended 30 June 2008. Further information regarding the circumstances contributing to these limitations of
audit evidence is contained within the Chairman’s Statement, Directors’ Report and notes 1 and 31 to the financial statements.

In farming our opinion we also avaluated the overall adequacy of the prasentation of information in the fingncial statements.

Qualified opinion arising from limitation in audit scope

Except for the financial effect on the group financial statements of such adjustments, if any, that might have been
determined 1o be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves as to the break-up valuss {o assets, in our opinion:

) the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the group's affairs as at 30 June 2008 and of its loss for the year then ended,

[ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2008; and

e the group and parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in ascordance with the Companies
Act 1985,

In respect solely of the limitation on our work relating to the ownership and existence of group assets and related
impairments:

] we have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered nacessary for the purpose of our audit;
and

* we were unable to datermine whether proper accounting records have been maintained.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ repoert is consistent with the financial staterments.

Emphasis of matter - going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements of ZTC Ple, which is qualified as above, we have considered the
adequacy of the disclosures made in note 1 to the financial statements concerning the company’s ability te continue as a
going concern. The company has secured new finance of £280,000 (subject to sharsholder approval on 21 April 2009) to
fund working capital requirements until the company sources a new investment oppartunity. As described in note 1 this
funding in alse contingent upon shareholder approval for the sale of the subsidiary company “Praise Ease” and if the
company fails to resume trading of its sharas on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange by 30
April 2009 then this funding becomes immediately repayable in full.

The Directors expect shareholder approval to be granted for both the sale of the subsidiary company and the refinancing
package and hence the subsequent reinstatement of its Shares on the Alternative Investment Market. However, should any
of these approvals not be granted, or the shares not be re-admitted for trading purposes, then the company would be
unable {o continus as a going concern.

In addition, if the company fails to secure a new investment opportunity or additional new finance within the next 12
menths, the company will be unable 1o continue as a going concern as it will have insufficient funds to trade.

These conditions along with the matters disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of & material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continug as a going concern, The financial
statements of the parent company do not include the adjustments that would result if the company was unable to continue
as a going concern.

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP 8 .D O ;Qj {-—/ Lef

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Epsom, Surray

27 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

Nole 2008 2007

£000 £000

Revenue 4 26,532 22,157
Cost of sales (20,990) (17,384}
Gross profit 5,542 4773
Other operating inceme 5 445 435
IPO expenses - (280)
Impairment of assets in subsidiary (18,996) -
Other administrative expenses (1,464) (1,151}
Total administrative expenses {20,460) (1,431}
Distribution costs (1,828} (1,368)
Other operating expenses (219) B73)
Operating (loss)/profit (16,520) 2,036
Finance income 3] 70 19
Finance costs 7 (131) 39
(Loss)/profit hefore tax (18,581) 2,016
Tax 9 (251) {128)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent {16,832} 1,888
Basic (loss)/earnings per share 10 (16.6p) 2.4p
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 10 (16.6p) 2.3p

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial statemenis
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Reverse Share Capital
Share acquisition  premium General Merger Translation contibution  Retained Total
capitat reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'060 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 July 2006 1 - - 178 766 (42) - 1,596 2,499
Foreign currency
translation - - - - - (54) - - (54)
Net expense
recognised directly
in equity - - - - - (54) - - (54)
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1,888 1,888
Total recognised
income and expense
for the year - - - - - (54) - 1,688 1,834
Transfer of profit to
general reserve - - - 249 - - - (249) -

Share premium

recognisad on

reverse acquisition - - 151 - - - - - 151
Issue of share

capital, {net of

issue expenses) 9,367 - 6,226 - - - - - 15,593
Acquisition of

subsidiary - (12,583) - - - - - - (12,583}
Share based

payment charge - - - - - - - 260 260
At 1 July 2007 9,368 (12,583) 6,377 427 766 (96) - 3,495 7.754

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Reverse Share Capital
Share acquisition  premium General Merger Transiation contibuton  Retained Totat
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings aquity
£'000 £000 £'000 £°006 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 1 July 2007 9,368 (12,583) 8,377 427 766 (96) - 3,495 7,754
Foreign currency
translation - - - - - 588 - - 588
Net income
recognised directly
in equity - - - - - 588 - - 588
Loss for the year - - - - - - - {16,832} (16832
Total recognised
incomes and expense
for the period - - - - - 588 - {16,832) (16.244)
Issue of deferred
shares (See nots 21) 1,500 (1,987 487 - - - - - -
Issue of share capital
by subsidiary
(Ses note 25) - - - - - - 448 - 448
Transfer to of loss
from general reserve - - - (427) - - - 427 -
Recognition of share
based paymenis - - - - - - - 172 172
At 30 June 2008 10,868 (14,570) 6,864 - 766 482 448 (12,738) {7.870)

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial staterments
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital account
Share capital records the nominal value of shares in issue.

Reverse acquisition reserve

A reverse acquisition reserve is established 10 take account of acquisitions that are deemed to be reverse acquisiions
under International Financial Reporting Standards.

Share premium reserve

Share premium records the receipts from issue of share capital above the nominal value of the shares. Share premium is
stated net of direct issue costs.

General reserve

In accardance with the “Law of China on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign Invastment”, 10% of the retained
earnings has been transferred as ZTC's general reserve fund.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose as a result of the acquisition by the group's subsidiary underiaking, Praise Ease Limited of
Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments Co. Ltd, which was acquired through a transaction under commaon
control and accounted for using the pooling of interests method.

Translation reserve

Translation gains and losses arising on the retransiation of net assels of subsidiaries whose presentational currency is not
sterling are recognised directly in equity in the Translation reserve.

Capital contribution reserve

Contributions provided 1o entities by shareholders that are not intended by either party to be repaid are accounted for as
capital contributions,

Retained earnings

Retained earnings records the cumulative profits less losses recognised in the income statement, net of any distributions
and shars-based payments made.

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note 2008 2007
£'600 £°000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 a0 571
Deferred tax asset 13 - 1
Total non-current assets 90 572
Current assets
Inventories 14 - 889
Trade and cther receivables 15 2,919 10,898
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,962 2,499
Total current assets 4,881 14,286
Total assets 4,971 14,858
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 6.977) {4,525)
Interest bearing liabilities 18 {2,877) (1,688)
Current tax liabilities (2,987 891}
Total current liabilities (12,841) {7,104
Total liabilities (12,841) (7,104
Net (liabilities)/assets (7.870) 7.754
Equity
Share capital 20 10,868 9,368
Reverse acquisition reserve (14,570} (12,583)
Sharg premium reserve 21 6,864 6,377
General reserve 24 - 427
Merger reserve 766 766
Capital contribution reserve 25 448 -
Translation reserve 22 492 (96}
Retained sarnings 26 (12,738) 3,495
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (7,870) 7,754

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 27 March 2009.

Signed on behalf of the Board pf Directors

Frank Lewis
Directar

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Note 2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operations
Net cash outflow from operations 27 {734) (1,399)
Interest paid - -
Tax refunded 1 -
Net cash outflows from operating activities {733) (1,399)
Investing activities
Interest received 37 19
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (26) {23)
Acquisition of parent through reverse acquisition, net cash used - {226)
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities 11 {230
Financing activities
Issue of shares prior to acguisition - 763
Issue of share capital - 1,605
Interest paid - {39)
Net increase in cash from financing activities - 2,329
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (722) 700
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,499 1,772
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 185 27
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 1,962 2,499

The notes on pages 26 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the European Union and in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 for
companies reperting under International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS). Therefore the Group financial
statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention. ZTC Ple is considered by the
Directors to be a going concern {subject to the significant uncertainties as set out below) and the accounts of the
parent entity have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors consider this appropriate based on the
successful refinancing of the company (which is subject to sharsholder approval on 21 April 2009) and on the
assumption that the revised investment strategy will be successfully implemented which needs to be executed within
12 months of the approval of these accounts. Details of the £280,C00 refinancing and change in strategy (which are
both subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 21 April 2009) are set out in the Circular to shareholders dated
27 March 2008.

The Directors expect shareho'der approvat 1o be granted for all of the proposals set cut in the Circular to sharsholders
and hence the subsequent reinstaternent of it shares on the Alternative Investment Market however, should any of
thess approvals not be granted, or the shares not to be re-admitted for trading purposes, then the company would
be unable 10 continue as a going concern.

If the company fails to resume trading of its shares on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock
Exchangs by 30 April 2009 then this £280,000 becomes immediately repayable in full. In addition, if the company
fails to sacure a new invesiment opportunity or additional new finance within the next 12 months, the company will
be unable to continue as a going concern as it will have insufficient funds to trade.

A critical element to the change in strategy is securing a substantial acquisition. In the event no substantial acquisition
is made within 12 months of the date of the 2009 AGM,, in accordance with the AIM rules for Companies, trading in
the Company’s shares will be suspended and if no reverse transaction is achieved in the following 6 months, the
London Stock Exchange wilf cancel the admission of the shares.

Zhong Tian, the main trading entity in the Group is unable to continue trading. This Is dus to the major shareholder
and Chief Executive Cfficer of ZTC plc leaving the company and the factory and offices being closed off, with no
access being given to employess or the directors. Given the extraordinary circumstances, the geoing concern
assumption for Zhong Tian is no longer appropriate. The effect is so pervasive that a fundamental change in the basis
of accounting to a break-up basis has been adopted for Zhong Tian and its asset values have been written down
accordingly, which is in accordance with IAS 10 paragraphs 14-16. Where necessary in order to value the assets and
liabilities in Zhong Tian, the Directors have used estimates based upon amounts recovered and expected 10 be
recovered after the balance sheet date as a precise valuation of those assets and liabilities is not available. Further
detail on the revaluation of the asset values in Zhong Tian can be found in notes 2, 3 and 31 to these financial
statements. In addition, in the parent company, the investment and intercompany receivables have been written
down to zero value to reflect the non-recoverability of these assets. A total charge of £18,066,000 has been reftected
in the accounts of the parent company in respect of these write-downs.

The principal accounting policies adopied are set out below. During the year, the following were the policies adopted
by the Beard, The Chairman's statement provides an updated assessment of the financial position of the company.
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Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

In the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ which is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007, and the consequential amendments to I1AS 1 'Presentation
of Financial Statements’.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to IAS 1 has been to expand the disclosures provided in these
financial statements regarding the Group's financial instruments and management of capital (ses note 19). There has
been no affect on the results, cash flows or financial position of the Group or the Company.

Five interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are effective for the
current period. These are IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the Restaterment Approach under 1AS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies'; IFRIC 8 ‘Scope of IFRS 2'; IFRIC 9 ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives'; IFRIC
10 ‘Interim Reporting and Impairment’; and IFRIC 11 ‘IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions'.

Tha adeption of these Interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group's accounting policies.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Intarnational Accounting Standards Board and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
have issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with pericds
commencing on or after the following dates:

International Accounting Standards

1AS 1 Amendment — Presentation of Financial staterments (effective for periods beginning on or afier
1 January 2009}

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective for perieds baginning on or after 1 January 2009)
IAS 23 Amendment — Borrowing costs (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

IAS 32/1AS 1 Amendment — Puttable Financial instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation: Presentation
(effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

IFRS 2 Amendment - Share-based payments {effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

IFRS 3" Business Combinations amendment and complementary amendments to 1AS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

IAS 39" Amendment — Financial Instruments: Becognition and measurement: Eligible Hedged liems {effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

IAS 27* Amendment — Consofidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2008}

IAS 39/IFRS 7 Amendment — Reclassification of Financial Instruments (effective for pericds beginning on or after 1
July 2008)

1AS 39/IFRS 7° Amendment - Reclassification of Financial Instruments (Effective date and transition} (effective for
periods baginning on or after 1 July 2008)

IFRS 1/1AS 27 Amendment — Cost of an Invastment in a subsidiary, jointly-controlled entity or associate (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009}

1AS 39/IFRIC 9 Amendment — Embedded Derivatives {affective for periods beginning on or after 30 June 2009)

27




ocw
IFRS 7* Amendment - Financial Instruments (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)
IFRS 1 Ravision — First Time Adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards (effective for periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

Improvements Amendment - clarification of the requirements of IFRSs and elimination of inconsistencies between
to IFRSs Standards (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 20C8)

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) Effective Date

IFRIC 127 Service Concession Arrangements (effactive for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008)
IFRIC 13* Customer Loyalty Programmes (sffective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008)
IFRIC 14* IAS 19 — The fimit on a Defined Bensfit Asset Minimum Funding Regquirements and their interaction

{effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008)

IFRIC 157 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009)
IFRIC 18" Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Cperation (effsctive for periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009)

IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007)
IFRS 2

IFRIC 17* Distriputions on Non-cash Assets to Owners {effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009)
IFRIC 18" Transfer of Assets from Customers (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

*These standards and interpretations are not endorsed by the EU at present,

The adopticn of IFRS 8 Operating Sagments will require the identification of operating segments based on internal
reports that are used by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate rescurces to the segment and assess
its performance. This may lead to an increase in the leval of disclosure required in relation to the Group's cperating
segments.

With the exception of IFRS 8 Operating Segments, the directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and
Interpretations in future pericds wil have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group when the
relevant standaras and interpretations come into effect. The directors do not anticipate the early adoption of any of
the above standards.

The Group has not adopted any of these items early, The Group intends to adopt these items in the first accounting
period beginning afier the effective date.

Basis of consolidation

Thase accounts for ZTC Telecommunications incorperate the consolidated financial statements of ZTC plc, Praise
Ease and Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communications Equipment Co., Lid (“Zhong Tian”) for the year ended 30 June
2008. Under IFRS comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2007 have also been included. Praise Ease and
Zhong Tian were acquired by ZTC in March 2007 and, due to the relative size of the acquisition, was required to be
accounted for under the “Reverse Acquisition” mathod.

Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operaticnal policies of an entity
50 as to gain benefit from its activities.
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The Company's controlling interest in its indirectly held, wholly owned subsiiary, Zhong Tian was acquired through
a transaction under common control, as defined in IFRS 3, Business Combinations. Tha directors noted at the time
of the acquisition that transacticns under common control were outside the scope of IFRS 3 and that there is no
guidance elsawhere in IFRS covering such transactions. This remains the case, the International Accounting
Standards Board having commenced their project on transactions under common contrel in December 2007,

IAS contain guidance where a transaction falls outside the scope of IFRS, This guidance is coverad in Paragraphs
10-12 of IAS 8, Accounting policies, Changas in Accounting Estimates and Errors. This requires, inter alia, that where
IFRS does not contain guidance on a particular issue, the Oirectors may also consider the most recent
pronouncements of other standard seiting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to develop accounting
standards, In this regard it is noted that the United States Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) has issued
an accounting standard covering Business Combinations (FAS 141), that is similar in a number of respects to IFRS
3. Further there is currently a major project being run jointly by the IASB and the FASB to converge IFRS and US
(3AAP. The assets and liabilities of the acquiree were initially recognised at their previous carrying values.

in contrast to IFRS 3, FAS 141 does include, as an appendix, limited accounting guidance for transactions under
commen control, which as with IFRS 3, are outside the scope of that accounting standard. The guidance contained
in FAS 141 indicates that a form of accounting that is similar to pooling of interests accounting, which was previously
set out in Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinion 16, may be used when accounting for transactions under
commen conirol,

Having considered the requirements of IAS 8 and the guidance included within FAS 141, it is considered apprepriate
to use a form of accounting which is similar to pocling of interests when dealing with the transaction in which the
Group acquired its controlling interest in Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments Co. Lid.

Reverse acquisition accounting

The acquisition of Praise Ease Limited by ZTC Telecommunications Plc on 21 March 2007 was accounted for under
the principles of reverse acquisition accounting. Although the consclidated financial statements have been prepared
in the name of the legal parent, ZTC Telecommunications Plc, they are in substance a continuation of the
consolidated financial statements of the legal subsidiary, Praise Ease Limited. The following accounting treatment
was applied in respect of the reverse acquisition:

e The assets and liabilities of the legal subsidiary, Praise Ease Limited are recognised and measured in the
consolidated financial statements at the pre-combination carrying amounts, without restaternent to fair value;

. The retained earnings and other aquity balances recognised in the consolidated financial statements reflect the
retained earnings and other equity balances of Praise Ease Limited immediately before the business
combination and the resulis of the period from 1 July 2006 to the date of the business combination are those
of Praise Ease Limited. Howaver, the equity structure appearing in the consolidated financial statements reflects
the equity structure of the legal parent, ZTG Telecommunications Plc, including the equity instruments issued
in order to effect the business combination; and

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and reprasents amounts received
or receivable for goods provided in the normat course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods and services are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.
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Group property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the following annual bases:

Leasehold improvements 4.5% (straight ling)
Office equipment 33.3% (straight line)
Motor vehicles 11.25% (straight line)
Machinery 18% (straight line)
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 18% (straight ling)

Where any items of property, plant and equipment are deemed 1o be impaired, they are written down to their
recoverable value,

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated before finance income and finance costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturitiss of three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise direct materials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those averheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marksting,
selling and distribution. Where any items of property, plant and equipment are deemed to be impaired, they are
written down to their recoverable value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effsctiva interest rate method. Approgriate allowances for estimated Irrecoverable amounis are recognised
in prefit and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Any impairment allowances mads
represent the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows from that asset. Any impairment losses are realised immediately in the income statement.

Other financial liahilities

Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost, with any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
recognised in the income statement over the period of the barrowings using the effective interest method.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that avidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to incoms on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
leass.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludas items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductibte. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences ¢an be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the inftial recegnition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asssts is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

The separate financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environmant in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements,
the results and financial position of each Group company are expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional
currency of the company and the presentational currency for the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors have determined ihe currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates o
be Renminbi (*RMB"). Sales and major ¢osts of providing goods and services including major operating expenses
are primarity influenced by fluctuations in RMB, The presentation currancy of the Group is pounds sterling and
therefore on consolidation the financial information of the subsidiaries has been translated from RMB (o pounds
sterling at the following rates:

Period end rate  Average rate
{RAMB per £1) (AMB per £1)

30 June 2008 13.7121 14.6189
30 Jure 2007 15.5716 15.6235
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Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are inftially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevaiing on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising ¢on the retranslation are included in the
Income statament.

Share based payments

The Group issues equity settled share basad payments 1o certain employees. Equily settied share based payments
are measured at fair value at the date of the grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled
share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusied for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model. The expested life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the effects on non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considarations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and key sources of
estimation and uncertainty

Valuation of remaining assets in Zhong Tian

The Directors have sought advice and used the limited informaticn available to them regarding the recoverabiity of
assets in Zhong Tian as previously noted in the Chairman’s statement. In attributing a value to each class of asset,
the Directors have in some cases used thair judgement as to how much will be received. The primary basis for the
valuations is through assessing cash received after the balance sheet date in respect of sales of assets after Charles
Huang had left the business. Where no cash has been recaived in respect of the assets, these assets are deemed
to have zero value, with the exception of cash and cash equivalents, which are deemed to maintain their full boock
value. A precise valuation of those assets and liabilities is not available. Of the cash held at the balance shest date,
£1.2m of this is restricted in its use and was used to repay the outstanding loan notes. Where assets have been
written down, this is detailed in note 3.

Provisions

In the procsss of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1 above, judgement was
applied by the Directors in estimating the provision for doubtful trade receivables and obsolete stock.

Share based payments

Management have mads numerous judgements regarding the calculation of the share based payments expense in
the accounts, including, the expected volatility of the Cornpany's shares, the share price 1o be used in the calculation
and the most appropriate risk free rate o use. In making these judgements, management considered the share price
volatility of a number of the Company’s competitors and current inferest rates. The actual figures used in the
calculation are shown in note 23,

No other material judgemants have been mads by management that could have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
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WRITE DOWN OF ASSETS IN SUBSIDIARY

As noted in the Chairman's Statement and note 31, Mr Chaohui {aka Chartes) Huang, CEQ, major creditor and
majority shareholder of ZTC Plc and Mr Yang Rugiang, the Company’s General Manager have been absent from the
Company and uncontactable since 5 November 2008, As a result of the uncertainty that this caused and the
interruption to the running of the business, trading of shares in ZTC Plc was suspended as of 7 November 2008.

The main company in the Group that has bsen affected by this is Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communigation Equipments
Co. Ltd (“Zhong Tian"), the main trading company of the Group. This company has not traded since 5th November
2008 and has a surplus of liabililies over assets when valued on a break-up basis. Due 1o the events noted above,
the Directors believe the break-up basis is the only appropriate Dasis for valuing the assets and liabilities of Znong
Tian and that this basis should be applied at the balance sheet date which is in accordance with IAS 10 paragraphs
14-16. The fallowing write-downs of Zhong Tian's assets have therefors been accounted for:

Going concern Amounts  Wriften down

value at wiitten off value at

30 June 2008 30 June 2008 30 June 2008

£'000 £'000 £'000

Property, Plant & Equipment 495,675 (405,647) 90,028
Inventories 1,255,021 (1,255,021) -
Trade receivables 12,016,929 (10,121,523) 1,895,406
Prepayments 7,153,810 {6,180,508) 993,302
Other receivables 1,052,389 (1,052,389 -
Cash & cash equivalents 1,616,760 - 1,618,760
TOTAL 23,590,584 (18,995,088) 4,595,496

The consolidated position of the Group reflects these adjustments, with a total of £23,580,584 of assets held within
Zhong Tian at 30 June 2008 being written down to the Directors' best estimate of their recoverable value.

The liabilities of Zhong Tian have not been written down since these liabilities have not been legally extinguished and
therefore continue to be recognised at their year end values. This is In accordance with IAS 39 paragraph 39.

The Directors believe, based on tegal opinions, that ZTC Plc is not liable for any of the liabilities within Zhong Tian

and also believe thai there is sufficient funding, arising frorn the re-financing as set out in the Chairman's statemaent,
avaflable 1o continue to meet its own liabilities {excluding that of other Group companies) for the foreseeable future.

33




®

Ixees

4. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group currently oparates in only one geographical market, China. This is the basis on which the Group records
its primary segment information. Unallocated operating expenses, assets and liabilities, refate to the general

management, financing and administration of the Group.

China Unaflocated
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Revenue 26,532 22,157 - - 26,532 22,157
Segment result (8177} 1,838 (788} {237) (16,965} 1,61
Other opsrating incoms 445 435
Finance income 70 19
Finance costs (131) {39)
(Loss)/profit before tax {16,581) 2,016
Tax ’ {251) (128)
(Loss)/profit for the year {16,832) 1,888
Other information
Capital expenditure 26 23 - - 26 23
Depreciation 155 143 - - 155 143
Balance sheet
Segment assets 4,590 11,479 381 3,378 4,971 14,857
Deferred tax asset - - - 1 - 1
Total assets 4571 14,858
Segment liabilities 9,423) (6,104) {431) (109} (9,854) 6,213)
Current tax liabilities (2,987) (891)
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Total liabilities (12,841) {7.104)
The Group had only one business segment, which is the manufacturs and retail of mobile phone handsets.
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Sales of components 215 343
Processing 45 74
Provision of value added services 108 17
Other 80 1
445 435
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FINANCE INCOME

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Bank interest receivable 70 19
FINANCE COSTS

2008 2007

£'000 £000
Interest charge on interest bearing liabilities 131 38
Total finance costs 131 39
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Note 2008 2007

£000 £'000
Profit for the financial year is arrived at after charging:
Depreciation on owned assets 155 143
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 90 73
Write down of inventories recognised as an expense - 5
Cperating lease payments 88 a7
Impairment of assets in Zheng Tian to "break-up™ basis 3 18,996 -

Amounis payable to BDO Stoy Hayward LLP and its related entities, in respect of both audit and non-audit services

are set out below:

Fees payable to the auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the auditors for other services:

The audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation

Other taxation services

Corporate finance transactions

Other services supplied pursuant to legislation

Other services
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£°000 £'000
53 43
37 30
8 5
- 185
7
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9. TAX
2008 2007
£'000 £000
Current tax
Tax on overseas subsidiaries:
- UK corporation tax payable - -
— QOverseas tax payable 251 127
Total current {ax 251 127
Deferred tax - 1
Total tax expense 251 128
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the incomes statement as follows:
2008 2007
£°000 £'000
(Loss)/profit before tax (16,837) 2,016
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (year ended 30 June 2007: 30%) {5.051) 605
Tax losses carried forward 162 288
Disallowable expenditure 78 {149)
Asset impairments not claimed as a tax deduction 5,699 -
Overseas tax exemption and concessions - (265)
Allowance for lower overseas iaxation rates (638} {400}
Other adjustments 1 49
Total tax expense 251 128

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are subject te taxation on the following bases and at the following
rates;

ZTC Telecommunications Pic

The Company is subject to the United Kingdom corporation tax regime. Gross tax losses of approximately £671,000
are available to carry forward against future profits within the company. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of these tax losses owing to uncertaindy as to potential future recoverability.

Praise Fase Limited

The company is subject 1o the corporation tax regime in Hong Kong. As the company mads a loss during the year,
no taxation is payable.

Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments Co. Lid
According 10 the former relevant PRC tax rules and regulations, the standard Enterprise tncome Tax {EIT) is 33%.

ZTC is located in Shenzhen, a special economic zons, which makes it eligible {0 enjoy a favorable income tax rate of
15 per cent, At the end of 2005, the company became a wholly foreign company and was entitled to ancther income
tax preference policy “2 years exemption and 3 years 50% discount from the first profit making year”. Thus, the
company was exempted from income tax for the statutory financial year 2005 and 2006; and has been paying a
reduced income tax rate of 7.5% for the statutory financial years 2007 to 2009.
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11a.

New PRC tax law has been implemented from 1 January 2008, The standard tax rate has decreased to 25%. As a
wholly owned foreign entity, the Company now bensfits from a 5 year transitional period under which the previous
tax holiday is covered.

The company benefits from 50% discount of income tax in year 2008 and 2009, The company declared income tax
with 7.5% tax rate in the first half 2008. The tax rate will be confirmed by the local tax bureau at the end of year.

Current tax expenses of ZTC for the financial years 2007 and 2008 represent PRC EIT calculated at the approved
income tax rate 15% on the assessable income.

Details of deferred tax assets are included in note 13,

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Earnings
{Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share {16,832) 1,888
Number of shares Thousands  Thousands
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposs of basic
earnings per share 101,592 77937
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options/warrants - 4,192
Weighted averaga number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 101,592 82,129

The denominators for the purposes of calculating both basic and diluted eamnings per share in 2007 have been
adjusied for the share division that tock place in 2007.

STAFF COSTS
The average monthly number of employees, (including executive directors) during the year was:
2008 2007
Number Number
Manufacturing 293 285
Sales 31 39
Administration . 130 o8
454 422
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:
2008 2007
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 749 539
Share based payments (see note 23} 172 71
Social security costs M 86

1,022 696
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11b. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The following amounts were paid to the directors, who are the key management personnel, during the year:

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Short-term employment benefits — directors’ emoluments 268 180
Share based payments 72 49

The highest 'paid director received remuneration of £100,000 (2007: £37,500). Further details of Directors’
remuneration are set out in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 14 to 16.

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures,
Leasehold Office Motor  fittings and
Improvements equipment Machinery vehicles equipment Totat
£'000 £'060 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

Cost
At 1 July 2006 9 - 685 105 34 833
Additions - 17 7 8 8 40
Exchange difference - - (24) {4) (N 29
At 1 July 2007 9 17 668 109 41 844
Additions - - 11 6 g 26
Exchange difference 1 - 77 13 5 a6
Impairment of asseis to
break-up basis (note 3) (10} {17) (566) (128) (55} {876)
At 30 June 2008 - - 90 - - S0
Depreciation
At 1 July 2006 1 - 124 5 6 136
Charge for the year 2 - 121 12 8 143
Exchange difference - - 65)] {1} - (6)
At 1 July 2007 3 - 240 16 14 273
Charge for the year 2 5 126 13 9 155
Exchange differance 1 - 38 3 2 42
Impairment
of assets 0 break-up
basis {note 3) {6} (5} 402) (32) {25) (470)
At 30 Juns 2008 - - - - - -
Net book value
At 30 June 2007 6 17 428 a3 27 571
At 30 June 2008 - - ap - - 90
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13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
£'000
Group
At 1July 2006 and 2007 1
Cradit to income statement (1)
30 June 2008 -
14, INVENTORIES
2008 going  Impeairment
concern  of subsidiary
value {Note 3) 2008 total 2007
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Raw materials 1,164 {1.164) - 463
Finished goods 5 5 - 428
Work in progress &8 (88) - -
Provision (2) 2 - -
1,255 (1,255) - 889
The Directors consider that the replacement value of inventories is not materially differant to their carrying value.
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Dus within one year:

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

Trade receivables

2008 going  Impairment

concern  of subsidiary
valua (Note 3) 2008 total 2007
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
12,017 (10,122) 1,895 4,273
1,083 (1,053} - 853
7,184 (6.160) 1,024 8,772
20,254 (17,335) 2919 10,888

Total net trade receivables {net of allowances) held by the Group at 30 June 2008 amounted to £2,919,000 (2007:

£4,273,000)

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 112 days. No interest is charged on the outstanding balances.
All customers are evaluated for credit rating and credit limit. Normally, deposits are required, and deliveries are

suspended for debtors over 120 days.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
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16.

17.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents per batance shest 1,962 2,499
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 1,962 2,489

All of the group's cash and cash equivalenis at 30 June 2008 are at floating interest rates.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2008 are held in the relsvant underlying currencies, notable
holdings not held in sterling are £4,627 (2007: £5,297) held in SHK and £1,469,502 (2007: £968,796}) held in Chinese
RMB.

Of the amounts held in Chinese RMB, significant concentrations were held with the following counterparties:

An amount of £345,739 is held in the UK with National Westminster Bank plc.

The table below indicates the major deposits held in Chinese RMB.

At 30 June 2008
GBP
Counterparty name Country RMB equivalent
Bank of China-Short term deposits China 16,306,765 £1,189,224
Guangdong Development Bank China 3,843,197 £280,278

The directors consider that the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.

All of the funds held with Bank of China can only be used to repay the loan notes in issue and are not free and
accessible to be used for any other purpose. These funds were, the directors belisve, used to repay the loan noles
subsequent to the year end. Between the data of the year end and up to early November at the point of the
disappearance of Charles Huang, the remaining cash in Chinese bank accounts was used to settle liabilities in the
normal course of business. Al funds held in Chinase bank accounts have since the disappearance of Charles, the
directors balieve, been sequestered by the Chinese authorities.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Trade payables 4,377 2,637
Income tax payable - 127
Other payables 1,169 292
Accruats and deferred income 1,431 1,469

6,977 4,525

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit
period taken for trade purchases is 76 days (2007: 55 days).

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.
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19.

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITES
2008 2007
£000 £'000
Amounts owed to refated parties 1,743 1,688
Other interest bearing liabilities 1,134 -
2,877 1,688

Amounts owing to a Director of ZTC Plc and a relative of the same Director bear interest and are repayable within
one year.

Other interest bearing liabilities relate 10 import financing agreements with an interest rate linked to Libor. A 1%
increase in Libor rates over the period would have lead to an £11,338 increass in the interest charge in relation 1o
these liabilities.

The amounts owed under the import financing agreements are linked to a pledged deposit certificate with Bank of
China upon which a fixed interest rate of 3.87% is earned. This amount is included in cash and cash equivalents and
is to be used to repay the import finance liabilities as thay fall due.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note describes the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further
quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements.

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

. trade receivables

. cash at bank

. trade and other payables
. interest bearing liabilities

The Group is exposed to the following risks relating to the financial instruments noted above — foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policy for managing these risks is outlined below;

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that sntities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns whils
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Group consists of debt, which includses the horrowings disclosed in note 18, cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reservas and retained eamings as
disclosed in notes 20 to 26.
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises on sales to overseas markets {by the Group’s subsidiary undertaking, Shenzhen Zhong
Tian Communication Equipments Co. Limited), namely Hong Kong, the transactions being denominated in $HK.
Sales to these markets are minimal and hencs the risk is not considered to be significant.

Foreign currency risk also arises in refation to the censolidation process, as the Group's main trading entity is based
in China and presents its accounis in Chinese RMB, Almost 100% of foreign revenues and the bulk of operating costs
are incurred in the local currency, the RMB. Group companies therefore do not engage in foreign exchange risk
hedges.

Of the trade and other receivables balance, £2,888,708 is denominated in Chinese RMB. A 1% increase in the value
of Chinese BMB against pounds sterling would increase the value of trade and other receivables by £288.87.

Of the trade and other payables balance, £6,546,252 of it is denominated in Chinese RMB. A 1% increase in the
valug of Chingse RMB against pounds sterling would increase the value of trade and other payatles by £65,463.

Liquidity risk

Uttimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk managsment framework for the management of the Group’s shorl, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requiremants. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group maintains good relationships with its banks and its cash reguirements are anticipated via the budgetary
Process.

The following table shows the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities.

Maturity of financial liabilities

Repayable Dure within Due Due after
on demand 30 days 30 - 90 days 90 days
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

At 30 June 2008
Accruals - 93 - -
Trade and cther payables 4,617 1,557 484 226
Interest bearing liabilities 223 - 1,020 1,634

Total financial liabilities 4,840 1,650 1,504 1,860

The weighted average interest charged on interest bearing liabilities is 4.85% (2007: 3.7%).

Financial instrurments by class and by category
Loans and Receivables

30 June 30 June
2008 2007
£ £

Current financial assets
Trads and other receivables 1,895 5,126
Cash and cash equivalents 1,962 2,499
Total current financial assets 3,857 7,625

The above financial assets analysis excludes prepayments of £1,024,000 (2007 - £5,772,000) as these do not meet
the definition of financial assets.
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Financial instruments by class and by cafegory {continued)
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
30 June 30 June
2008 2007
£ £
Current financial liabilities
Accruals a3 108
Trade & other payables 6,884 4,416
Interest bearing liabilities 2,877 1,688
Total current financial liabilities 9,854 6,213
Total financial liabilities 9,854 6,213

Credit risk
The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit sales. It is the Group's policy, implemented by management,
10 assess the credit risk of the new customers before entering contracts. The Group closely monitors the creditability
of its existing customers and will require an advance payment if necessary. The Group will terminate business with
customers with a poor credit history. Management considers the above measures to be sufficient to control the crediit
risk exposurs,

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a few national distributors who
account for a material preportion of sales.

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance shee)
comprise cash at bank andg other short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less. The Group holds all cash and cash equivalents at banks and other credit institutions with high credit ratings. An
analysis of the large concentrations of cash balances by counterparty and currency is included in note 16.

The Group does not enter into complex derivative contracts to manage credit risk.

The Group's maximum expasure to credit risk is the balance of current financial assets classified as loans and

receivables.

Interest risk
The risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates has been considered in note 18,

SHARE CAPITAL

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Authorised:
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
108,682,5150rdinary shares of 10p each 10,868 9,368
10,868 9,368
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Issue of deferred shares

As part of the acquiisition of Praise Ease by ZTC plc in 2007, up to 15 million ordinary shares were potentially issuable
if the company achieved an agreed leve! of profitability. During the year ended 30 June 2008, the agreed level of
profitability was reached and the shares issued at a premium of 3.25p per share.

Share Options

A total of 2,160,000 options over the ordinary share capital of the Company were granted to a number of employees
on 21 March 2007. All options are exercisablo at the market value &t the date of grant, being 20p per ordinary share
and are exercisable between 1 and 10 years from the date of grant. None of the aforementioned options have been
exercised or have lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2008. 1,100,000 of the options will lapse prior to the signing
of the accounts, 460,000 will lapse on 14 May 2009 and the remaining 500,000 will lapse on 21 July 2009.

Employee Warrants

A total of 3,125,500 employee warrants over the ordinary share capital of the Company were outstanding at year
end. These employes warrants were exercisable immediately and at any time up until 31 March 2010. All employes
warrants are exercisable at the market value at the date of grant, being 20p per ordinary share. All of the
aforementioned warrants were granted in the year ended 20 June 2007 and the relevant charge taken through the
income statement in that year.

2,812,500 of the employes warrants have been waivad since 30 June 2008,

Non-employee warrants

A total of 8,912,500 non-employee warrants were cutstanding at the start of the year. All of these warrants lapsed
on 29 November 2007,

SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE

2008 2007

£000 £'000
Opening balance 8,377 -
Share premium recognised on reverse acquisition - 151
Issue of share capital - 7,000
Issue of deferred shares 487 -
Expenses connected 1o issue of share capital - {774}
Closing balance 6,864 6,377

As part of the acquisition of Praise Easse by ZTC pic, up to 15 milion ordinary shares were potentially issuabls if the
company achieved an agreed level of profitability. During the year ended 30 June 2008, the agreed level of profitability
was reached and the shares issued at a premium of 3.25p per share resulting in share premium of £ 487,000

TRANSLATION RESERVE

2008 2007

£'000 £°000

1 July 2007 {96) (42)
Exchangs differences arising on translation of overseas operations 588 (54}
30 June 2008 492 (86}
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23. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

As outlined in notes 20 options and warrants over the Company's ordinary share capital were granted to various
employees during the year ended 30 June 2007. During the ysar ended 30 June 2008 the Company grantsd no
opticns or warranis.

Details of the share options and warrants outstanding during the year arg as follows.

Weighted

Number average

of sharg exercise

options and price

warrants £

QOutstanding at beginning of year 5,285,000 .20
Granted during year - c.20
Expired during the year (3,125,000} 0.20
Qutstanding at end of year 2,160,000 0.20
Exercisable at end of year 2,160,000 0.20

At 30 June 2008, the Company had 2,160,000 options outstanding, all exercisable at year end at an exercise price
of 20p per ordinary share. 1,100,000 of the options will lapss prior to the signing of the accounts, 460,000 will lapse
on 14 May 2009 and the remaining 500,000 will lapse on 21 July 2009 as outlined in note 20,

Share based payment charges have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model to calculate the fair value of the
share options and warrants. The inpuis into the Black Scholes model are as follows;

2008 2007
Weighted average share price 20p 20p
Exercise price 20p 20p
Expected volatility 33.4% 33.4%
Expecied life G years 6 years
Risk free rate 5.5% 5.5%
Expected dividends 0% 0%

The expected volatility percentage was calculated by reference 10 the share price of the company over a iwenty four
week period from the listing of the company to the end of August and the share price of a close competitor company
for a two year period up until August 2007. The expected life used in the model has besn adjusted based on
management's best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

All outstanding options are exercisable until 14 May 2008 {save in respect of 500,000 opticns held by Charles Huang
which have to be exercised by 31 July 2009) and the latest date that the warrants have to be exercised is 31 March
2010.

The group recognised total expenses related to equity settled share based payment transactions in the form of
options and warrants of £172,000 (2007 £260,390). Of this total, £172,000 refated to employees including executive
directors, (2007: £70,759). The remaining amount in the year ended 30 June 2007 relates to the fair value of share
options issued as consideration in the acquisition by the group’s subsidiary undertaking, Praise Ease Limited of
Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments Co. Ltd.
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24. GENERAL RESERVE

In accordance with the “Law of China on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign Investment”, 10% of the retained
earnings has been transfarred as ZTC's general reserve fund, after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
and before profit distributions to the investors, After the annual tax review for CY2008, the general reserve will be
adjusted according to the accumulated profits determined by the tax bureau.

25, CAPITAL. CONTRIBUTION RESERVE

During the year, Charles Huang agreed to write-off a loan of £448,000 to Praise Ease under the agreement that Praise
Ease would issue additional shares at par to ZTC plc. A capital contribution reserve was established ta reflect this.

26. RETAINED EARNINGS

2008 2007

£000 £000
1 July 2007 3,495 1,596
(Lossyprofit for the year (16,832) 1,888
Recognition of share-based payments 172 260
Transfer from/(to) general reserve 427 (249)
30 June 2008 (12,738} 3,495

27. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
(Loss)profit for the year (16,832} 1,888
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of progerty, plant and equipment 165 143
Share based payment expense 172 260
IPC expense - 280
Finance income (70) {19}
Finance costs 131 39
Tax 231 128
Impairment of assets to break-up value 18,996 -
Operating profit before changes in working capital 2,803 2,719
Changes in working capita:
Increase in inventories (366) {656}
Increase in trade and other receivables (2,358) (7,533)
Increass in trade and other payables 5,187 4,071
Net cash outflow from operations (734) (1,399}
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30.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease paymenis under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Within one year 79 84
In the second to fifth years 78 133
After five years 43 47
200 264

The operating leases relate primarily to the lease of the factory and also of office premises.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 21 March 2007 the group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Praise Ease Limited for initial consideration
of £14 million satisfied by the issue of 70,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10p each at 20p per share and contingent
consideration of a maximum of 15,000,000 additional ordinary shares of 10p, based upon the post-tax profis of
Zhong Tian for the year ended 30 June 2007. Subsequent to meeting the conditions for payment of the contingent
consideration, 15,000,000 10p ordinary shares were issued during the year on 21 December 2007 for a
consideration of 20p per shars.

Praise Ease Limited is the parent company of a group of companies involved in the manufacture and distribution of
mobile phones. The transaction has been accounted for by the reverse acquisition mathod of accounting.

In the consclidated group accounts it has been accounied for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with IFRS 3
Appendix B. The legal subsidiary is identified as the acquirer, and the fair value of the consideration given is £3.96m.
The legal parent is identified as the subsidiary, The fair value of the assets acquired is £3.96m. Therefore no goodwill
has arisen.

There were no new acquisitions in the year ended 30 June 2008.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consclidation and are not disclosed in this note as the company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by
Financial Reporting Standard 8 “Related Party Disclosures” not to disclose transactions with members of the group
headed by ZTC pic,

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

An amount of £1,487 209 (30 June 2007: £1,519,345) was owed to Chanres Huang (a Director of ZTGC plc) at 30 June
2008, being the balance of funds loaned to ZTC plc by Charles Huang.

A rental expense of circa £67,813 [year ended 30 June 2007; £65,630) was incurred and payable to a relative of

Charles Huang. A balance of £255,694 (30 June 2007: £164,588) was outstanding in respect of rentat payments to
Charles Huang’s relative at 30 June 2008.
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31. EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The events detailed in the Chairman’s Statement, the Directors Report and in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements have led to the revaluation of assets in the trading subsidiary, Zhong Tian.

Cessation of trading of subsidiary

As noted in the Chairman’s Statement, Mr Chachui (aka Charles) Huang, CEOQ, major creditor and majority
shareholder of ZTC Ple and Mr Yang Rugiang, the Company's General Manager have been absent from the
Company and uncontactable since 5 Novermnber 2008. As a result of the uncertainty that this caused and the
interruption to the running of the business, trading of shares in ZTC Plc was suspended as of 7 November 2008.

The main company in the Group that has been affected by this is Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication Equipments
Ce. Ltd {"Zhong Tian"), the main trading company of the Group. Due to the events noted above, and the fact that
Zhong Tian has not traded since 5 November 2008, the Directors believe that the assets and liabilities of Zhong Tian
should be valued on a break-up basis, that this is the only appropriate basis for valuing the assets and liabiiities of
Zhong Tian, and that this basis shouid be applied at the balance sheet date.

As the Directors have no access to any of Zhong Tian's financial information, the Directors have made the {ollowing
write-downs, based on best estimates, of Zhong Tian's assets in preparing the vear end financial siatements:

Going concern Amounts  Written down

value at wriften off value at

30 June 30 June 30 June

2008 2008 2008

(EGBF) (£GBF) (£GBF)

Property, Plant & Equipment 495,675 (405,647} 90,028
Inventories 1,255,021 (1,255,021) -
Trade receivables 12,016,929 {10,121,523) 1,895,406
Prepayments 7.153,810 (6,160,508} 993,302
Other receivables 1,062,389 {1,052,389) -
Cash & cash equivalents 1,616,760 - 1,616,760
Total 23,590,584 {18,995,088) 4,595,496

The consolidated position of the Group reflects these adjustments, with a total of £23,590,584 of assets held within
Zhong Tian at 30 June 2008 being written down to their recoverable value.

in the parent company, the investment and intercompany receivabiles have been written down to zero value to reflect
the non-recoverability of these assets. A total charge of £18,066,000 has been reflected in the accounts of the parent
company in respect of thess write-downs.

Based on the best information available to the Directors, and taking into account the prospects for the Company
following the implementation of the Proposals, {subject to shareholder approval on 21 April 2009), your Board has
concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts for the parent company on a geing ¢encern basis, subject
to fundamental uncertainty and accordingly continue to present these accounts on that basis. The board also
believes that the subsidiary, Praise Ease Limited remains a going concern. Subject to shareholder approval at the
AGM, ZTC plc will sell its entire shareholding in Praise Ease Limited. As a condition of the sale, the loan due by Praise
Ease Limited to ZTC plc will be repaid over a period of three years using 50% of the proceeds that are recoverable
from Zhong Tian. After three years, the remainder of the loan will be written off. As this loan is the only liability of Praise
Ease Limited, the directors believe that the going concern basis is appropriate. The Board howsver do not belisve
that the subsidiary, Zhong Tian is a going concern, hence this company's accounts have been prepared under a
break up basis.
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The Directors believe, based on legal advice, thal ZTC Pic is not liable for any of the liabilities within Zhong Tian and
also believe that, subject to completion of the proposed transaction, detal's of which are set out in the Circular to
shareholders dated 29 March 2009, there is sufficient funding available to the Company to enable it to continue to
meet its own liabilities (excluding that of other Group companies) for the foreseeabls future. Clearly the future
prospects of the company will be wholly dependent on the ability of the Board and the new major investor to
successfully implement the investment strategy as cutlined in the Chairman's statement and the Circular to the
shareholders.

Major potential share transactions

Details of the proposed share capital recrganisation together with share subscription and convertible loan notes are
set out in the Circular to shareholders.
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Company Balance Sheet

Fixed assets
Investments

Total fixed assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Total current assets

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

Net assets

Represented by:

Share capital

Shares to be issued

Share premium reserve

Non distributable reserve
Retained profit and loss reserve

Equity shareholders’ funds

Note

33

34
35

36

19

37

2008 2007
£000 £'000
- 15,987

- 16,087

30 1,853
345 1,525
375 3,378
(105) (435)
(105) {435)
270 2,943
270 18,030
10,868 9,358
- 1,987
6,864 6,377
2,019 2,019
(19,481) @21
270 18,930
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet

32. COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with currenily applicable Accounting
Standards in the United Kingdom, which have been applied consistently, and under the historical cost convention.
The accounis have been drawn up on a gaing concern basis.

The directors consider this appropriate based on the successful refinancing of the company {which is subject to
sharehoider approval on 21 Aprit 2009) and on the assumption that the revised investment strategy will be
successfully implemented which needs to be executed within 12 months of the approval of these accounts. Details
of the £280,000 refinancing and change in strategy {which are both subject to shareholdar approval at the AGM on
21 April 2009} are set out in the Circular to shareholders dated 27 March 2009,

The Directors expect shareholder approval 1o be granted for all of the proposals set out inthe Circular to shareholders
and hence the subsequent reinstaternent of it shares on the Alternative Investment Market howaver, should any of
these approvals not be granted, or the shares not to be re-admitted for trading purposes, then the company would
be unable to continue as a going concern.

If the company fails to resume trading of its shares on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock
Exchange by 30 April 2009 then this £280,000 becomes immediately repayable in full. In addition, if the company
fails to secure a new investmant cpportunity or additional new finance within the next 12 months, the company wilk
be unable to continue as a going concern as it will have insufficient funds to trade.

A critical elernent to the change in strategy is securing a substantial acquisition. In the event no substantial acquisition
is made within 12 months of the date of the 2009 AGM, in accordance with the AlM rules for Companies, trading in
the Company's shares will be suspended and if no reverse transaction is achieved in the following 6 months, the
Londen Stock Exchange will cancel the admission of the shares.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and has not
presented its income statement in these financial statements. The Group profit for the year includss a loss after tax
of £18,660,000 (2007:£437,000) which is dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

Fixed asset investments
Investrmenis held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment to their carrying value,

The carrying value of the company's investment in its subsidiary, Zhong Tian, has been reduced by £15,987,000 to
€nil, This reduction arises from this subsidiary company ceasing to be a going concern. The individual financial
statements of Zhong Tian have been prepared on a break-up basis in accordance with FRS 21 (see note 3). The
directors considar that it is appropriate for the same basis of accounting to be followed in accounting for the parent
company's investment in its subsidiary in the parent's individual financial statements. While FRS 21 does not contain
specific guidance, the requirements set out in paragraph 14-16 of that standard have been applied by analogy.

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instrumenis comprise cash, debtors and creditors that arise from iis operations. Financial
assets are recognised in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable valus. Provision is made for
diminution in value whers appropriate. Income and expenditure arising in the financial statements are recognised on
the accruals basis and credited or charged to the profit and loss account in the financial period to which they relate.

The net intercompany receivables have besn written down to zero value to reflect the non-recoverability of these

assets. A total charge of £2,079,000 has been reflected in the accounts of the parent company in raspect of these
write-downs.
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33.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominaied in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchangs
ruling at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account as they arise.

Share-based payments

The Company issuss equity setiled share based payments to certain employees. Equity settled share based
payments are measured at fair value at the date of the grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the eguity
settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vasting conditions.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model. The expected life used in the mode! has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects on non-transterability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

STAFF COSTS
The only employees during the year were executive and non-executive directors:
2008 2007
Number Number
Administration 3 3
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:
2008 2007
£°000 £°000
Wages and salaries 273 177
Share based payments see note 23 172 71
Socia! security costs - -
445 248

52




&

it

34.

35.

36,

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Invesiment in

subsidiary

undertakings

£000

At 1 July 2007 15,987
Write-off of investment in subsidiaries (15,987)

At 30 June 2008 _

The Company owns 100% of the voting rights and the ordinary share capital of the following undertakings, the results
and balance sheets of which are included in these consolidated accounts:

Name of undertaking Place of Incorporation % ownership Principal activity
Praise Ease Limited Hong Kong 100% Helding company
Shenzhen Zhong Tian Communication China 100%"* Design, distribution and
Equipments Co. Ltd assembly of mobile phonas

“This company is owned indirectly by ZTC Telecommunications Plc

DEBTORS
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Due within one year:
Amgunts owing from group companies - 1,837
Prepayments and accrued inccme 30 186
30 1,853

Amounts owing from group companies relates to funding provided to Praise Ease Ltd. The funding is denominated
in pounds stering and therefore no foreign exchange exposure exists.

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 345 1,525
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 345 1,525

All balances are denominated in pounds sterling and are heid with reputable banks in the United Kingdom.,
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37.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2008 2007
£000 £000
Trade craditors 13 -
Accruals and deferred income 92 109
Due to connected persons - 326

105 435

Craditors principally comprise amounts outstanding relating to the running costs of the parent company ZTGC Ple.

SHARE CAPITAL
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Authorised:
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
108,682,515 ordinary shares of 10p each 10,868 9,368
10,868 9,368

Issue of deferred shares

As part of the acquisition of Praise Ease by ZTC pic in 2007, up 1o 15 milion ordinary shares were potentially issuable
if the company achieved an agreed level of profitability. During the year endad 30 June 2008, the agreed level of
profitability was reached and the shares issued at a premium of 3.25p per share.

Share Options

A total of 2,160,000 options over the ordinary share capital of the Company were granted to a number of employees
on 21 March 2007. All options are exercisable at the market value at the date of grant, being 20p per ordinary sharg
and are exercisable between 1 and 10 years from the date of grant. None of the aforementioned options have been
exarcised or have lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2008. 1,100,000 of the options will lapse prior 1o the signing
of the accounts, 460,000 will lapse on 14 May 2009 and the remaining 500,000 will lapse cn 21 July 2009.

Employee Warrants

A total of 3,125,000 employee warrants over the ordinary share capital of the Company were outstanding at year
end. These employee warants were exercisable immediately and at any time up untd! 31 March 2010. All employes
warrants are exarcisable at the market value at the date of grant, being 20p per ordinary share. All of the
aforementioned warrants were granted in the year ended 20 June 2007 and the refevant charge taken through the
income statement in that year.

2,812,500 of the employee warrants have been waived since 30 June 2008.

Non-employee warrants

A total of 8,912,500 non-employes warrants were outstanding at the start of the year. All of these warrants lapsed
on 29 November 2007.

54




b o ]
39. SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE
2008 2067
£'000 £'000
Opening balance 6,377 151
Share premium recognised on reverse acquisition -
Issue of share capital - 7,000
Issue of deferred shares 487 -
Expenses connected o issue of share capital - (774)
Closing balance 6,864 6,377
As part of the acquisition of Praise Ease by ZTC plc, up to 15 miillicn ordinary shares were potentialy issuable if the
company achieved an agreed level of profitability. During the year ended 3C June 2008, the agreed level of profitability
was reached and the shares issued at a premium of 3.25p per share resulting in share premium of £487,000.
40. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Issue of shares - 8,103
Issue of defarred shares 1,500 -
Movemant in shares to be issued (1,987) 1,987
Increase in share premium 487 6,226
Increase in undistributable reserve - 2,019
L.oss for the financia! year (18,660) (561)
Net addition in shareholders’ funds {18,660) 17,774
Opening sharehotders' funds 18,830 1,156
Closing sharshelders’ funds 270 18,930
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41. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The events datailed in the Chairman's Statement, the Directors Report and in note 3 to the consolidated financial
stalements have led to the revaluation of assets in the trading subsidiary, Zhong Tian. For the purposes of these
financial statements, the Directors have considered ZTC Ple to be a going concern and have therefore prepared the
company financial statements of ZTC Plc on a going concem basis. The investments in Praise Ease and Zhong Tian

have been written down to their carrying value in the books of ZTC Plc.

Going concern Amounts  Writfen down

value at written off value at

30 June 30 June 30 June

2008 2008 2008

(EGBF) {EGBP) (£EGBP)

Fixed asset investments 15,987,000 (15,987,000} -
Debtors 2,109,442 (2,079,051) 30,391
TOTAL 18,096,442 (18,066,051) 30,391

Major share transactions

Details of the proposed share capita! reorganisation together with share subscription and convertible loan notes are

set out in the Circular to shareholders.

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The directors believe, based on legal advice, that ZTC plc is not liable for any of the liabilities within Zhong Tian,
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